

SC-1 Reference Manual

Firmware Version 2.3B (Basic Functionality)

Contents

INTRODUCTION	1
SC-1 FEATURES	1
MANUAL ORGANIZATION	1
ON THE WATER	2
DEVICE OVERVIEW	2
DISPLAYS	2
Buttons	3
BATTERY LIFE INDICATOR	4
GETTING STARTED	5
Inserting Batteries	5
Signal Acquisition	6
OPERATING MODES	7
TURNING POWER ON	8
TURNING POWER OFF	9
Auto Power-Off	10
BUTTON LOCKING	10
Recalling Maximum Speeds	10
Resetting Maximum Speeds	11
WHEN YOU GET HOME	12
SOFTWARE INSTALLATION REQUIRED TO DOWNLOAD GPS DATA FROM YOUR DEVICE	12
INSTALLING VELOCITEK CONTROL CENTER	12
INSTALLING DRIVERS FOR YOUR VELOCITEK DEVICE	26
USING VELOCITEK CONTROL CENTER	30
SC-1 GPS DATA STORAGE	30
DOWNLOADING GPS DATA	31
SAVING GPS DATA	35
CLEARING GPS DATA	43
UPDATING USER INFORMATION	44
Updating Device Settings	45
UPDATING FIRMWARE	46
LAUNCHING GPS ACTION REPLAY FROM VELOCITEK CONTROL CENTER	48

CONTACT	50
INDEX	51

Introduction

SC-1 Features

The SC-1 Basic firmware is an easy to use, stripped down version of the more powerful but complicated SC-1 Full firmware. The Basic firmware version gives the SC-1 the following features:

- Speed and compass updated at 2 times a second
- Maximum and best 10 second average speed recall
- Over 35 hours of GPS data storage at record rate of every 2 seconds
- Data downloading through USB link
- User configurable device settings allow customization of select SC1 functionalities
- Up to 25 hours of battery life
- Internet <u>updatable firmware</u> allows you to benefit from ongoing product improvements and feature additions

To successfully use the SC-1 with the basic firmware, the only procedure that absolutely must be learned is <u>how to turn the device on</u>. Use the basic firmware if you don't like reading instruction manuals and you only need a speedometer and compass.

Also, because the basic firmware <u>does not have multiple modes</u> that it can switch between, it is not affected by water splashing on its buttons. Use the basic firmware if you are having problems with splashing water unlocking your SC-1's buttons and inadvertently changing the display mode.

Manual Organization

This manual is divided into two main sections. The first section, <u>On the Water</u> describes how to use the SC-1 to obtain real-time feedback while you are sailing. The second section, <u>When You Get Home</u> describes how to download and view GPS data from your SC-1 using a PC.



On the Water

This section describes how to use the SC-1 to obtain real-time feedback while you are sailing

Device Overview

Displays

The following diagram shows the SC-1's two main display areas:



Speed and heading are displayed in the lower and upper displays respectively. The information shown on each display is made clear by a mode indicator immediately to the left of the numerical display area.

The first decimal point on the upper display is used as an unlock indicator if any of the <u>lock features</u> are enabled. The indicator is not displayed if all lock features are disabled.



Buttons

The SC-1 is controlled by four different capacitive touch sensors. These touch sensors detect the presence of your thumbs when they are placed on top of the regions shown in the following diagram:



The captions on the above diagram indicate how the different touch sensors will be referred to in the rest of this manual.



Battery Life Indicator

The battery life indicator is located in the top left corner of the SC-1. As the energy in the device's batteries is consumed, the battery life indicator will undergo the following progression to show you how much run time you have left:



- 1 When the indicator is fully illuminated you have approximately 25 hours of battery life remaining.
- 2 When the indicator is two thirds illuminated you have less than 18 hours of battery life remaining.
- **3** When the indicator is one third illuminated you have less than 12 hours of battery life remaining.
- 4 When the indicator is not illuminated you have less than 6 hours of battery life remaining.

When the batteries are too low to properly power the GPS chipset the whole display will go blank and flash "LO" in the lower display.

Note: The above applies for rechargeable nickel metal hydride (NiMH) batteries. Disposable alkaline batteries will provide approximately half the life of NiMH batteries. Also with disposable batteries, there will be a tendency for the life indicator to remain fully illuminated for most of the battery life and only drop down to the lower levels when the batteries are nearly exhausted.

The SC-1 will slowly deplete batteries even when it is turned off. Fully charged batteries will be exhausted in about 100 days when the device is left turned off. For long term storage, remove any one of the three batteries from the device to prevent this slow drain.



Getting Started

This section describes everything you need to know before hitting the water with your SC-1.

Inserting Batteries

Open the waterproof case and insert 3 AA batteries into the metal clips on the circuit board. Be careful to orient the batteries according to the polarity markings on the circuit board. These markings are circled in red on the following photograph:



The SC-1 will work with rechargeable nickel metal hydride (NiMH) batteries or standard disposable AA batteries. Disposable batteries will provide approximately 12 hours of life while rechargeable NiMH batteries will last for 25 hours or longer. The remaining <u>battery life indicator</u> on the SC-1 is calibrated to work with rechargeable NiMH batteries.



Signal Acquisition

The operation of the Velocitek SC-1 relies on low-power radio signals from GPS satellites that orbit the earth at an altitude of approximately 20,000 km. As a result, the SC-1 must be outdoors with a clear view of the sky to function properly.

When the SC-1 is first turned on, it must download information from GPS satellites before it can acquire a GPS solution. The data download process normally takes 1-2 minutes or up to 5 minutes if fresh batteries have just been installed.

The following illustration depicts the GPS signal acquisition process:



- 1 When the SC-1 is first turned on, both the upper and lower display will show "---". The lower display will also blink on and off.
- **2** Once the device has acquired a GPS solution and is capable of providing information, both upper and lower displays will show solid numbers.

Please Note: The SC-1 cannot obtain a GPS solution indoors.



Operating Modes

The device displays current speed on the lower display and heading in degrees on the upper display. In Basic firmware the SC1 modes cannot be changed for either display. Modes can be edited and more modes, VMG, tactical compass, timer and start line, are available in the Full firmware. Refer to the Full firmware manual for more information. The firmware on the device can be <u>updated</u> by connecting the SC-1 to the PC.

The below figures shows speed of 16.9 knots and compass heading of 69 degrees:



Speedometer Mode

In Speedometer mode the display will show your current speed updated at 2Hz (twice a second). The speed can be displayed in knots, miles/hour, kilometers/hour or meter/second by editing the <u>device</u> <u>settings</u>. The default is to display speed in knots.

Compass Mode

In compass mode, the device displays either true or magnetic heading at an update rate of 2Hz (twice a second). True heading is the direction you are moving referenced to true north. Magnetic heading is the degrees you are heading in reference to the local magnetic north. When using a magnetic compass in conjunction with the SC-1, setting the compass declination to the local declination is useful since both instruments will be referenced to magnetic north. By default the compass displays true heading, to display magnetic heading the local magnetic declination must be defined in <u>device settings</u>.

The SC-1 displays heading only when your speed is greater than 1 knot, otherwise it will show a heading of 0 degrees regardless of which direction you are actually moving.

The difference of the SC-1 to a conventional magnetic compass is that the SC-1 measures the direction the device is moving in rather than the direction it is pointed in.

A major benefit of the SC-1 over a conventional magnetic compass is that it will give you accurate heading information, regardless of the orientation in which it is mounted on your boat. SC-1's compass reading depends only on the direction you are moving, not the direction the device is pointing.



Turning Power On

Use the following procedure to turn on the SC-1:



- 1 Use your thumbs to cover both the Mode and Minus buttons.
- **2** You will see a countdown starting from 3 on the lower display. If you do not see the countdown appear, remove and reapply your right thumb.
- **3** When the countdown reaches zero, remove both your thumbs.
- **4** The device will turn on.



Turning Power Off

When you first insert batteries into the SC-1 it will automatically turn on. To turn it off, use the following procedure:



- 1 Make sure the SC-1's <u>buttons are unlocked</u>.
- 2 Use your thumbs to cover both the Mode and Minus buttons.
- **3** You will see a countdown starting from 3 on the lower display.
- **4** When the countdown reaches zero, remove both your thumbs. The device will turn off and the display will go blank.



Auto Power-Off

The feature automatically turns off the SC-1 when all of the following conditions are continuously present for over 10 minutes:

- A GPS signal is not available
- The speed indicated on the SC-1 is less than 2.0 knots
- There are no button inputs
- The device is not connected to a PC

The auto power-off feature is disabled by default. The feature can be enabled by <u>connecting the SC-1</u> to a PC.

Button Locking

The Velocitek SC-1 uses touch sensors to accept user input. Splashing water can trigger the touch sensors. To prevent the device from being inadvertently controlled by splashing water the device locks, or does not accept button inputs, when the indicated speed exceeds the <u>speed lock value</u>. At speeds below the speed lock value, the buttons are unlocked and will accept user input. The lock feature can be customized by <u>connecting the SC-1 to a PC</u>. By default the locking is enabled with a speed lock value of 2.0 knots.

Recalling Maximum Speeds

When the lower display is in speedometer mode, you can recall your maximum speed and your best 10 second average speed. To recall your maximum speed:



- 1 Make sure the SC-1's <u>buttons are unlocked</u>.
- 2 To recall your maximum speed hold the Plus button
- **3** To recall your best 10 second average speed hold the Minus button



Resetting Maximum Speeds

Use the following procedure to reset the maximum and best 10 second average speeds recorded on the SC-1 to zero:



- 1 Make sure the SC-1's <u>buttons are unlocked</u>.
- 2 Cover both the plus and the minus buttons with your thumb. You will see a countdown from 3 to 0 on the lower display.
- **3** When the countdown reaches 0 remove your thumb from both buttons.
- **4** You will see "CLr" displayed on the lower display. This indicates that the maxim speeds have been successfully reset.

Please Note: This procedure only resets the values that you see when you press the plus or minus button on speedometer mode. It has no effect on the stored GPS data that gets downloaded through the USB connection.



When You Get Home

This section describes how to install Velocitek Control Center, change device settings on the SC-1 and download GPS data from the SC-1.

Software Installation Required to Download GPS Data from Your Device

The following items will be installed on your PC by the Velocitek installer:

- Velocitek Control Center 2.3
- Velocitek Device Drivers (Required for communication with SC-1)
- Microsoft .Net Framework 2.0 (Required for Velocitek Control Center 2.3)
- Microsoft .Net Framework 3.0 (Required for Velocitek Control Center 2.3)
- Java (Required for GPS Action Replay)

The Velocitek installer can be downloaded from http://www.sailgps.com/downloads

Installing Velocitek Control Center

Download setup.exe for Velocitek Control Center 2.3 from http://www.sailgps.com/downloads

- **1** Double click on setup.exe.
- 2 If you do not have the .NET 2.0 framework installed, the Velocitek Control Center installer will download the .NET 2.0 framework from Microsoft and install it for you. Click OK to begin installing the framework.





3 Click Next.

🕼 Microsoft .NET Framework 2.0 Setup	
Welcome to Microsoft .NET Framework 2.0 Setup	
This wizard will guide you through the installation process.	
	Next > Cancel



4 Once the setup is complete you will get the following message. Click Finish.





5 The rest of the installation will be guided by the Install Shield Wizard. If you do not have Java 2 or .Net Framework 3.0, the wizard will proceed to install them. Click Install. Otherwise the wizard will proceed with installing Velocitek Control Center.

InstallShield Wizard
Velocitek Control Center requires that the following requirements be installed on your computer prior to installing this application. Click Install to begin installing these requirements:
Status Requirement
Pending Java 2 Standard Edition Runtime Environment 5.0 Update 1 Pending Microsoft .NET Framework 3.0
Install Cancel



6 Select I accept, click Next.

1	J2SE Runtime Environment 5.0 Update 1 - License	X
	License Agreement Please read the following license agreement carefully.	un.
	Sun Microsystems, Inc. Binary Code License Agreement for the JAVA 2 PLATFORM STANDARD EDITION RUNTIME ENVIRONMENT 5.0 SUN MICROSYSTEMS, INC. ("SUN") IS WILLING TO LICENSE THE SOFTWARE IDENTIFIED BELOW TO YOU ONLY UPON THE CONDITION THAT YOU ACCEPT ALL OF THE TERMS CONTAINED IN THIS BINARY CODE LICENSE AGREEMENT AND SUPPLEMENTAL LICENSE TERMS (COLLECTIVELY "AGREEMENT"). PLEASE READ THE AGREEMENT CAREFULLY. BY DOWNLOADING OR INSTALLING THIS SOFTWARE, YOU ACCEPT THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT. INDICATE ACCEPTANCE BY SELECTING THE "ACCEPT" BUTTON AT THE BOTTOM OF THE AGREEMENT. IF YOU ARE NOT WILLING TO BE BOUND BY ALL THE TERMS, SELECT THE "DECLINE" BUTTON AT THE BOTTOM OF THE AGREEMENT AND THE O I accept the terms in the license agreement	
Ir	nstallShieldCancel	



7 Select Typical, click Next.





8 Once Java installation is complete you will get the following message. Click Finish.



9 If you get the following message, do not restart computer to proceed with rest of the installation. Click No.





10 The wizard will continue with the installation of .Net Framework 3.0.

h	nstallShield Wizard	
	Velocitek Control Center requires that the following requirements be installed on your computer prior to installing this application. Click Install to begin installing these requirements:	
	Status Requirement	
	Succeeded Java 2 Standard Edition Runtime Environment 5.0 Update 1 Installing Microsoft .NET Framework 3.0	
	Installing Microsoft .NET Framework 3.0	
	Install Cancel	



11 Once .Net Framework 3.0 is installed, the wizard will proceed with the installation of Velocitek Control Center. Click Next.





12 Enter User Name and Company Name. Click Next.

Velocitek Control Center - InstallShield Wizard	
Customer Information Please enter your information.	
User Name:	
Ken	
<u>C</u> ompany Name:	
Home	
Install this application for:	
 Anyone who uses this computer (all users) 	
🔘 Only for <u>m</u> e (Ken)	
(<u>B</u> ack)	Cancel



Select Typical, click Next.

Velocitek Contro	ol Center - InstallShield Wizard 🛛 🔀
Setup Type Select the setup	o type to install.
Click the type o	f setup you prefer, then click Next.
 Typical 	Program will be installed with the most common options. Recommended for most users.
O <u>C</u> ompact	Program will be installed with minimum required options.
O C <u>u</u> stom	You may select the options you want to install. Recommended for advanced users.
InstallShield ———	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Cancel



14 Click Next.

Velocitek Control Center - InstallShield Wizard	×
Start Copying Files Review settings before copying files.	
Setup has enough information to start copying the program files. If you want to review or change any settings, click Back. If you are satisfied with the settings, click Next to beg copying files. Current Settings:	or jin
InstallShield <u>Kext > C</u>	ancel

15 Click Continue Anyway.





16 Once Velocitek Control Center is finished installing you will get the following message. Click Finish.





17 If prompted, restart your computer. Select Yes, click Next.





Installing Drivers for Your Velocitek Device

Before installing drivers, you must have Velocitek Control Center installed on your computer. Drivers are the low-level software that allows Velocitek Control Center to communicate with your GPS device through a USB link. Use the following procedure to install the drivers for your Velocitek GPS device:

1 Open your device's waterproof case and connect your GPS device to your computer using the included USB cable. Make sure that your GPS device contains batteries that are correctly installed and that it is switched on.





2 Once the device has been connected to your PC, the following window will appear. Select the No, not this time option and click on Next.





3 Select Install the software automatically and click on Next.

Found New Hardware Wizard	
Image: Section 2.1 Image:	lps you install software for: r hardware came with an installation CD ppy disk, insert it now. vant the wizard to do? ne software automatically (Recommended) om a list or specific location (Advanced)
	< Back Next > Cancel

4 Select Continue Anyway.





5 Click Finish and you will be taken back to a screen that looks like what you saw in step 3. Repeat steps 3 through 5 to complete the driver installation.



Congratulations! You are now ready to start downloading GPS data from your Velocitek device.



Using Velocitek Control Center

The Velocitek Control Center can be used to download GPS data from the SC-1 and change device settings on the SC-1.

SC-1 GPS Data Storage

Whenever your Velocitek SC-1 is turned on and has a GPS solution (i.e. when it is showing you speed, heading or VMG information) it records GPS trackpoints every 2 seconds. Each trackpoint contains the following information:

- Latitude
- Longitude
- Heading
- Speed
- Time

The SC-1 has room for 35 hours worth of GPS trackpoints at a record rate of every 2 seconds. When the SC1's memory becomes full, the oldest trackpoints on the device are automatically deleted to free up space for new ones. At any point in time, the SC-1 will contain a record of your last several days of sailing.



Downloading GPS Data

Use the following procedure to download GPS data from your SC-1:

- **1** Run Velocitek Control Center.
- 2 Connect your SC-1 to your PC with the included cable





- 3 Your GPS tracks are automatically broken up into segments whenever
 - The SC-1 is turned off and on again
 - USB cable is disconnected

The start and end dates and times for each track segment are shown in the track segment window using the system time zone of the PC. The most recently recorded track segments are listed first. Select the track segments you wish to download and combine them into a single GPS data file by clicking the corresponding check boxes in the track segment window as shown below.

Club T umber U umber 0 are Version v e ~ End Time .31 AM ~ Thu 5	Fahoe Yacht (lothing Ventu JSA 248 Aelges 24 J0248 GC1 v4.5 (2.3 (Basic)			
umber U umber 0 are Version v e ~ End Time 31 AM ~ Thu 5	Vothing Ventu JSA 248 Velges 24 V0248 SC1 v4.5 (2.3 (Basic)			
umber U umber 0 are Version v e ~ End Time .31 AM ~ Thu 5	(number of tra			
umber 0 are Version v e ~ End Time 31 AM ~ Thu 5	/elges 24 /0248 6C1 v4.5 ·2.3 (Basic) (number of tra			
umber 0 are Version v e ~ End Time .31 AM ~ Thu 5	0248 SC1 v4.5 2.3 (Basic) (number of tra			
are Version v e ~ End Time 31 AM ~ Thu 5	SC1 v4.5 2.3 (Basic) (number of tra			
are Version v e ~ End Time .31 AM ~ Thu 5	2.3 (Basic) (number of tra	alenaista)		
e ~ End Time 31 AM ~ Thu 5	(number of tra	olenoiste)		

Note: The dates shown in the track segment window are written using the American month/day format.



4 Click on the Download button to begin transferring the GPS data from your SC-1 to your computer. This process can take as long as 30 seconds for every hour of GPS data stored on the device. If the SC-1's memory is completely full you can expect to wait as long as 10 minutes.

Download	ay with GPS Action	n Replay
Sailor Information:	Name	Tom Klenke
Download	track from device	Tahoe Yacht Club
Boat Information:	Name	Nothing Ventured
	Sail Number	USA 248
	Class	Melges 24
	Hull Number	00248
Device Information:	Model	SC1 v4.5
	Firmware Version	v2.3 (Basic)
3: Thu 5/8/	/2008 8:40 AM ~ The	10 3/8/2008 8:43 AMI (264)
<u> </u> 3: Thu 5/8/	/2008 8:40 AM ~ Th	IU 3/6/2006 6.43 ANI (264)



5 Once the data transfer is complete, you will see an automatically generated file name appear at the bottom of the Velocitek Control Center window. In the example shown this file name is 080508_083450. The file names are automatically generated. The file names are created with the following format: *yearmonthday_hourminutesecond*. For example, 080508_083450 corresponds to a track segment where the first trackpoint was recorded at 8:34:50 am on May 08, 2008.

In the screenshot below, the asterisk following the file name indicates that the file has not been saved.

<u>ne setup n</u> elp	wwith GDS Action	Replay		
Sailor Information	Name	Tom Klenke		
	Yacht Club	Tahoe Yacht	Club	
Boat Information:	Name	Nothing Vent	ured	
	Sail Number	USA 248		
	Class	Melges 24		
	Hull Number	00248		
Device Information:	Model			
	Firmware Version			
(device does not	support trackpoint lo	ne (number of ti gs)	rackpoints)	
(device does not	start Time ~ End Tin support trackpoint lo	ne (number of ti gs)	rackpoints)	

Please see the next section of this manual for instructions on how to save the GPS data you have downloaded in a number of different formats.



Saving GPS Data

When you download GPS data from your device you can save it on your PC in three different formats:

- .gpx, a standard format widely used for exchanging GPS data between applications. This is the format used by the replay software GPS Action Replay. The .gpx format contains positions and times.
- .kml, this is the format used by Google Earth. The .kml format contains only a list of positions.
- .vcc, this is Velocitek's proprietary format. It can only be viewed in a text editor such as Notepad. The .vcc file format contains a list of times, positions, speeds, and headings. The speeds and headings in a .vcc file were determined in real time directly from measurements of the Doppler shift in the available GPS signals. These speeds and heading are significantly more accurate than what can be obtained by through calculations based on the position and time data present in other file formats.

.vcc is also the only format that contains the user information programmed on your device.

You can also open saved .vcc files in Velocitek Control Center and save them as .gpx or .kml files. The reverse of this transformation is not possible.



Saving GPS Data as a .vcc File

- **1** <u>Download the GPS data</u> you want the file to contain.
- 2 Select File->Save

Download 🕨 Pla	ay with GPS Action	Replay		
Sailor Information:	Name	Tom Klenke		
	Yacht Club	Tahoe Yacht	: Club	
Boat Information:	Name	Nothing Vent	ured	
	Sail Number	USA 248	n)i	
	Class	Melges 24		
	Hull Number	00248		
Device Information:	Model			
	Firmware Version			
Select All s	itart Time ∼ End Tir support trackpoint lo	ne (number of tr gs)	rackpoints)	
Select <u>All</u> (device does not	ätart Time ∼ End Tir support trackpoint lo	ne (number of tr gs)	rackpoints)	



3 Give the file a different name from the automatically generated one if you wish. Click on the Save button to complete the process.

Save					×
O V V Docume	nts 🕨 My Velo	ocitek Files		Search	Q
🕒 Organize 👻 🎆 Views	👻 📑 New	Folder			0
Favorite Links	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size	Tags
Documents		Tł	nis folder is er	npty.	
🔮 Network					
📃 Desktop					
Recent Places					
Computer					
Pictures					
More »					
Folders 🔨					
File <u>n</u> ame: 08050 Save as <u>t</u> ype: Veloc	08_083450.vcc itek Control Ce	nter File (*.vcc)			•
Hide Folders				Save	Cancel



Saving GPS Data as a .kml or .gpx File

- **1** <u>Download the GPS data</u> you want the file to contain.
- 2 Select File->Export and then choose the format you want. In the screenshot, the .kml format was selected.

	<u>S</u> etup <u>I</u>	Help	
3	<u>O</u> pen	Play with GPS Acti	ion Replay
E	Save	: Name	Tom Kenke
	<u>C</u> lose	Yacht Club	Tahoe Yacht Club
à	<u>E</u> xport	As <u>K</u> ML (God	ogle Earth)
	Exit	As GPX (GPS	Action Replay)
-	- Carolina - Caro	Class	Melges 24
		Hull Number	00248
	Device Inform	ation: Model	
		Firmware Versio	n
		Firmware Versio	n
	Select <u>A</u> ll	Firmware Version	n
	Select <u>A</u> I	Firmware Versio	n Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select All	Firmware Versio	n Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select <u>Al</u>	Firmware Versio	n Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select All	Firmware Versio	n Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select All	Firmware Versio	n Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select <u>A</u> I	Firmware Versio	n Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select All	Firmware Versio	n Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select All	Firmware Versio	n Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select <u>Al</u>	Firmware Versio	n Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select <u>Al</u>	Firmware Versio	n Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select All	Firmware Versio	Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select All	Firmware Versio	Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)



3 Name the file and click on the Save button to complete the process.

Export						×
	Ocume	nts 🕨 My V	elocitek Files	▼ 	Search	Q
🄄 Organize 👻	Views	🗸 📑 N	ew Folder	_		0
Favorite Links		Name	Date modified	Туре	Size	Tags
Documents			No ite	ms match yo	ur search.	
Network						
E Desktop						
Recent Place	s					
Computer						
Pictures						
WOIE "						
Folders	^					
File <u>n</u> a	ame: 0805	08_083450.kn	nl			•
Save as <u>t</u>	ype: Goog	le Earth File ((*.kml)			•
0						
Hide Folders	i.				Save	Cancel



Converting a .vcc File into a .gpx or .kml File

1 Select File->Open and then choose the .vcc file you want to convert.

<u>F</u> ile	Setup Help				
2	Open Pla	ay with GPS Action	Replay		
E.	Save	Name	Tom Klenke		
	<u>C</u> lose	Yacht Club	Tahoe Yacht	Club	
s)a	Export +	Name	Nothing Ventu	ured	
	Exit	Sail Number	USA 248	nli	
-		Class	Melges 24		
		Hull Number	00248		
	Device Information:	Model			
		Firmware Version	1		
	Select All	i tart Time ~ End Tir support trackpoint lo	ne (number of tri gs)	ackpoints)	
	Select <u>All</u> (device does not	ätart Time ∼ End Tir support trackpoint lo	ne (number of tra gs)	ackpoints)	



	<u>Open</u>	elp Play with GPS Acti	on Replay
(F)	Save	i: Name	Tom Klenke
	Close	Yacht Club	Tahoe Yacht Club
93	Export +	As <u>K</u> ML (God	ogle Earth)
	Exit	As <u>G</u> PX (GPS	Action Replay)
		Class	Melges 24
		Hull Number	00248
	Device Information	ation: Model	
		Firmware Version	n
	Select <u>All</u>	Start Time ~ End es not support trackpoint	Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)
	Select All	Start Time ~ End es not support trackpoint	Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)

2 Select File->Export and then choose the format you want to convert it to.



3 Change the name of the converted file (optional) and click the Save button to complete the process.

Export						×
	« Docume	nts ► My V	elocitek Files		Search	Q
🄄 Organize 👻	U Views	5 👻 📑 N	ew Folder			0
Favorite Links		Name	Date modified	Туре	Size	Tags
Documents			No ite	ms match yo	ur search.	
🔮 Network						
📃 Desktop						
Recent Place	25					
Computer						
More »						
Folders	^					
File <u>n</u> Save as j	ame: 0805 type: Goog	08_083450.kn Jle Earth File i	nl (*.kml)			•
Hide Folder	5				Save	Cancel



Clearing GPS Data

<u>Since old data is automatically deleted</u>, you may never need to clear GPS data from the SC-1's memory. If for any reason you do want to delete GPS data, select Setup->Erase All Track Segments.

	Setup <u>H</u> elp			
<u>D</u> o	Update User Information		lay	
	Erase All Tr	ack Segments	n Klenke	
	Update Dev	vice Firmware	loe Yacht Qub	
1		Cell Number		
			USA 248	
		Uass	Meiges 24	
D-	uine lafomation :		00248	
De	vice information.	Model	301 V4.0	_
	2: Thu 5/8/ 3: Thu 5/8/	/2008 8:34 AM ~ Thu /2008 8:40 AM ~ Thu	5/8/2008 8:37 AM 5/8/2008 8:49 AM	(80) (264)

Doing this will remove all track segments from the device. It is not possible to delete individual track segments while keeping others. Performing the above procedure will not affect the user information (your name, boat name, etc...) stored on the device.



Updating User Information

You can store information about yourself and your boat in the SC-1. The information will be displayed in Velocitek Control Center when your device is connected to a computer. It will also be attached to .vcc files created with data from your device.

Use the following procedure to store user information on the SC-1.

- **1** Select Setup->Update User Information.
- **2** The following form will appear. Fill out the form and click OK to program your device or Cancel to discard the changes.

Sailor Information	First Name	Tom	Last Name	Klenke
	Yacht Club	Tahoe Yacht Club		
Boat Information	Name	Nothing Ventured	Sail Number	USA 248
	Class	Melges 24		•
	Hull Number	00248		
				OK Cancel

Please Note: If the name of your class does not appear in the list of classes, please send an email with the name of your class and your geographic location to classes@sailgps.com



Updating Device Settings

User configurable device settings allow you to customize how your SC-1 works on the water.

- **1** Select Setup->Update Device Settings.
- **2** The following form will appear. Customize the device settings and click OK to program your device or Cancel to discard the changes.

Speed Display In

Speed can be displayed in 4 different units of measurement, knots, miles/hour, kilometers/hour and meters/second. The default unit of measurement is knots.

Compass Declination

When defined to the local declination the <u>compass</u> <u>measurement</u> will be referenced to local magnetic north. Positive declination represents west and negative declination represents east. To reference the compass measurement to true north, input 0 for compass declination. Default compass declination is 0 degrees. When using a magnetic compass in conjunction with the SC-1, setting the compass declination to the local declination is useful since both instruments will be referenced to magnetic north.

Device Options Speed displayed in	
knots	•
Compass Declination	n
0 🚖 deg	
Lock Settings	
Speed Lock Ena	bled
Speed Lock Value	
2.0 🚔 knots	0
Auto Power-Off	Enabled
OK	Connel

Speed Lock Enable

When enabled, the buttons <u>lock</u> when the device speed is above the speed lock value. Speed lock is enabled by default.

Speed Lock Value

The threshold speed in knots at which the device buttons will lock if speed lock is enabled. The default speed lock value is 2.0 knots.

Auto Power-Off Enabled

Enable or disable <u>Auto Power-Off</u>. When enabled the device automatically powers off when it is inactive for over 10 minutes. The feature is disabled by default.



Updating Firmware

Firmware is the miniature computer program that runs on the GPS device's microprocessor to control how it operates. From time to time Velocitek releases new versions of its GPS device firmware. These updates are designed to either improve your device's performance or to tailor its functionality towards a specialized application. You can check for the latest available firmware versions at www.sailgps.com/downloads.

To update your device's firmware, use the following procedure:

1 Select Setup->Update Device Firmware.

<u>File</u> <u>Setup</u> <u>H</u> elp				
🖞 Do 🕼 Update Use	r Information	lay		
Update <u>D</u> ev	ice Settings	n Klenke		
👔 <u>E</u> rase All Tra	ack Segments	noe Yacht C	lub	
Update Dev	ice <u>F</u> irmware	hing Ventur	ed	
Longer and the second s	Sail Number	USA 248	1	
	Class	Melges 24		
	Hull Number	00248		
Device Information:	Model	SC1 v4.5		
	Firmware Version	v2.3 (Basic)		
Select All S 1: Thu 5/8/ 2: Thu 5/8/ 3: Thu 5/8/	tart Time ~ End Tin 2008 8:31 AM ~ Thu 2008 8:34 AM ~ Thu 2008 8:40 AM ~ Thu	ne (number of tra 5/8/2008 8:33 5/8/2008 8:37 5/8/2008 8:49	ckpoints) AM (40) AM (80) AM (264)	
Select <u>All</u> S 1: Thu 5/8/ 2: Thu 5/8/ 3: Thu 5/8/	tart Time ~ End Tin 2008 8:31 AM ~ Thu 2008 8:34 AM ~ Thu 2008 8:40 AM ~ Thu	ne (number of tra 5/8/2008 8:33 5/8/2008 8:37 5/8/2008 8:49	ckpoints) AM (40) AM (80) AM (264)	



2 Choose the firmware .hex file you want to install and click Open.



3 Wait for the firmware file to be uploaded to your GPS device. This will take approximately 10 minutes. Progress will be indicated by a horizontal bar graph at the bottom of the Velocitek Control Center window.



Launching GPS Action Replay from Velocitek Control Center

- **1** Download GPS data or open *.vcc files in Velocitek Control Center.
- 2 Click Play with GPS Action Replay.

lie Jeruh Lielh			
Download	ay with GPS Actio	on Replay	
Sailor Information:	Name	Tom Kenke	
	Yacht Club	Play with GPS Action Replay	
Boat Information:	Name	Nothing Ventured	
	Sail Number	USA 248	
	Class	Melges 24	
	Hull Number	00248	
Device Information:	Model		
	Firmware Version	n	
Select All	Start Time ~ End support trackpoint	Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)	
Select <u>Al</u>	Start Time ~ End support trackpoint	Time (number of trackpoints) t logs)	



Maintenance

To ensure your SC-1's enclosure remains watertight and the electronics are not destroyed by corrosion, please take the following precautions:

- Store your SC-1 with the latches undone and the enclosure partially open. This leaves the gasket decompressed and allows it to expand. This ensures that it will fit tightly when the enclosure is latched and fully closed.
- If you ever see signs that water is leaking inside the SC-1's enclosure please contact Velocitek immediately at (800)-693-1610 or support@sailgps.com to arrange for your device to be repaired and made watertight again. If ignored for an extended period of time, a leaky enclosure will wreck your SC-1



Contact

Mail:	Velocitek, LLC		
	271 B Kahiko St.		
	Paia, HI 96779		
	USA		
Fax:	+1-650-618-2679		
Phone:	Calls will be answered 9AM ~ 6PM, Hawaiian Standard Time (GMT-10)		
	US and Canada: +1-800-693-1610		
	International: +1-650-362-0499		
Email:	support@sailgps.com		
Forum:	http://www.sailgps.com/forums/		
Downloads:	http://www.sailgps.com/downloads/		
Website:	http://www.sailgps.com		



Index

Α

Auto Power Off, 10 Auto Power-Off Enabled, 45

В

Battery Life, 4 Button Locking, 10 Buttons, 3

С

Clearing GPS Data, 43 Compass Declination, 45 Compass Mode, 7 Contact, 50

D

Device Settings, 45 Displays, 2 Downloading GPS Data, 31

F

Firmware, 46

G

GPS Action Replay, 48 GPS Data Formats, 35

I

Inserting Batteries, 5 Installing Velocitek Control Center, 12

Μ

Maintenance, 49

0

Operating Modes, 7

R

Recalling Maximum Speeds, 10 Resetting Maximum Speeds, 11

S

Signal Acquisition, 6 Speed Display In, 45 Speed Lock Enable, 45 Speed Lock Value, 45 Speedometer Mode, 7

Т

Turning Power Off, 9 Turning Power On, 8

U

User Information, 44

